
DALLAS CITY COUNCIL
Monday, December 5, 2011

Council Chambers

The Dallas City Council met in regular session on Monday, December 5, 2011, at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers of City Hall with Mayor Brian Dalton presiding. 

ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Council members present: Council President Wes Scroggin, Councilor Jim Fairchild, Councilor 
Beth Jones, Councilor Mark McDonald, Councilor Kevin Marshall, Councilor Murray Stewart, 
Councilor LaVonne Wilson, and Councilor Ken Woods, Jr.  Excused:  Councilor Jackie Lawson   
  

Also present were: City Manager Jerry Wyatt, City Attorney Lane Shetterly, Community 
Development/Operations Director Jason Locke, Administrative Services Director Robert Spivey, 
Chief of Police John Teague, and Recording Secretary Emily Gagner.

Mayor Brian Dalton led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

QUESTIONS OR COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE

There were no questions or comments from the audience. 

PUBLIC HEARING

CONSENT AGENDA  

It was moved by Councilor Wilson and seconded by Council President Scroggin to approve the 
Consent Agenda as presented.  The motion carried unanimously.   

Items approved by the Consent Agenda: a) approve the November 7, 2011, City Council 
minutes; b) acknowledge report of the November 28, 2011, Administrative Committee meeting; 
and c) acknowledge report of the November 28, 2011, Building and Grounds Committee meeting
.

ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA

There were none.  

REPORTS OR COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL

Mayor Dalton reminded the Councilors that if they had a complicated question to ask of city staff, 
it was best if they contacted the staff prior to the meeting.  He noted this provided the staff time to 
research the question and better answer the question at the meeting.  

Councilor McDonald expressed his appreciation to the Dallas EMS for their professionalism 
while helping his mother recently.  He added he considered the EMS, Fire and Police to be 
everyday heroes.

Councilor Wilson recognized the ambulance department for something she saw recently.  She 
explained she pulled up to the stoplight near Safeway and the ambulance was pulled up opposite 
her.  She noticed a mother with several small children with her walking across the street and as 
the children walked by and waved at the ambulance drivers, they took the time to wave to each 
child.  

Councilor Woods reported that as the Chair of the Mid-Willamette Valley Area Commission on 
Transportation, he attended a workshop hosted by ODOT in November.  He explained ODOT 
came with a message to share that was nothing but doom and gloom, noting they indicated there 
was not sufficient long-term funding sources to preserve the state highway system.  He explained 
improved fuel efficiency in vehicles resulted in decreased revenue through lower fuel taxes 
received.  He indicated currently most of the system was at the tipping point of failure.    

Councilor Fairchild reported he recently attended the LOC Board of Directors meeting and noted 
the governor is trying to look at budgeting on a 10-year plan rather than a 2-year plan to get more 
consistency.

Councilor Stewart stated he attended the first workshop of the task force looking at options for 
area fire and EMS departments.  He noted they kicked around ideas on different ways to service 
the area and would continue to hold workshops to look at those ideas in more detail.

Councilor Jones indicated she had attended Winterfest and it was fun.  Mayor Dalton noted there 



City Council Meeting
December 5, 2011
Page 2 

were 1,000 or more people in attendance.

Council President Scroggin stated the Oregon Board of Parole recently celebrated their 100th 
anniversary, noting it was a nice ceremony.  He also encouraged people to visit the capitol during 
the holiday season, which was decorated with beautiful Christmas trees.

REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER AND STAFF

POLK CERT OVERVIEW

Chief of Police Teague stated he was also the City’s emergency manager and noted the City was 
very fortunate to have a city manager who supported and understood emergency management.  
He then introduced Kimber Townsend, the Polk County Community Emergency Response Teams 
(CERT) Coordinator, indicating she was very knowledgeable and he appreciated that she was 
very energetic and commanding.

Ms. Townsend indicated CERT was a FEMA-mandated program that was intended to provide a 
community-based, well-trained force to help bolster the public safety responders.  She reported 
the CERT team in Polk County was 100 members strong and they covered the whole county.  She 
noted residents probably see the CERT members in the community as they helped with the 
National Night Out event and Summerfest this year.  She added CERT members also helped the 
Dallas Retirement Village meet state mandates for emergency planning.  Ms. Townsend stated 
Polk County CERT enjoyed support from the cities of Dallas, Monmouth, and Independence.

In response to a question, Ms. Townsend stated in order to become a CERT member, individuals 
needed to pass the basic CERT program which trained them in 8 main areas.  She directed people 
to their website at www.polkcountycert.org for more information.  She noted all members were 
required to pass a full background check.

Mayor Dalton told Ms. Townsend CERT’s service was greatly appreciated and they did a very 
good job.

PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST UPDATE

Mr. Wyatt reviewed the staff report.  He noted staff did take these requests very seriously.

COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE

Mr. Wyatt reviewed the staff report.  

Councilor McDonald stated he had noticed in part of the rules it stated within 30 days of taking 
office, each Councilor would sign that they had reviewed and received a copy of the rules.  He 
indicated the signature page also stated the Councilor agreed to comply with the rules, which was 
different language under the authority.  He indicated the Councilors were elected to represent the 
people and if they agreed to comply to the rules it was as if they were subordinate to some other 
authority.  He indicated the Councilors were subordinate to the authority of the Charter and this 
was not part of the Charter.  He noted it was an agreement amongst the Councilors to abide by the 
rules.  He added someone who was elected to office wouldn’t have read the document and it 
wasn’t right to expect them to sign that they agreed to abide by the rules after they had been 
elected.  Councilor McDonald stated he didn’t have a problem saying he had received and 
reviewed the rules.    

Mr. Shetterly stated this was a set of rules the Council adopted, noting this Council couldn’t bind 
the next Council.  He added the next Council could decide they were not going to comply with the 
rules and indicated there was no enforcement authority.  Mr. Shetterly explained if someone said 
they didn’t agree to comply with the rules, there was no legal authority that said they had to.  He 
commented that if the Council adopted the rules, it would be worth looking at a different form for 
incoming Councilors or perhaps look at readopting the rules every time there was a new Council.  
He added the acknowledgement form included in the proposed rules was appropriate for this 
Council at this time.  Councilor McDonald responded that every time he walked in the Council 
Chambers, he was reminded of his oath to the people and that was his primary focus.  He 
indicated his appreciation for the need for procedure, but as the executives who help guide the 
City, he felt their oath should be the primary focus; to protect the rights of those they were elected 
to serve.  Councilor McDonald stated he agreed to comply with the rules, but there may come a 
point when he didn’t wish to comply, adding the rules may change as other Councils come 
forward.

Councilor Fairchild agreed the Councilors’ first duty was to represent the people in the best 

http://www.polkcountycert.org


City Council Meeting
December 5, 2011
Page 3 

manner they could.  He indicated he liked the proposed rules because it provided some guidelines 
to make nine separate people work together in the most effective manner to accomplish that one 
main goal.  He stated they could change the sentence to say “I agree to do my best to comply…” 
which would provide some wiggle room.

Mr. Shetterly reported that Council rules were contemplated in the Charter and there was special 
basis for authority.  He read part of Section 13 of the Charter of 1964 which stated “[The Council] 
shall adopt rules for the government of its members and proceedings.” 

Councilor Woods commented there was no penalty provision in the rules and asked how other 
Councils could sanction members as he’d heard them do.  Mr. Shetterly stated that could come up 
in cases of interference with Council business, noting the Dallas Charter limited the 
circumstances under which the Council could remove someone from the Council.  In response to 
a question, Mr. Shetterly indicated a Councilor could be ejected from the Council Chambers for 
disruption of a meeting, but that would not remove them from office.

Councilor Wilson stated she felt they were simplistic rules that outlined courtesy to one another.  
She commented that it needed to be adopted so the Council had them in place.

Councilor Jones asked if anyone was opposed to saying they would do their best to comply with 
the rules.  Councilor McDonald reiterated the inconsistency between Section 2 of the rules and 
what they were being asked to sign.  He discussed signing that after being elected and making an 
oath to the Constitution of the United States.  He stated the extra language did not make sense 
from a legal standpoint.

Mr. Shetterly stated if the Council adopted the rules, they would be bound by them even if they 
did not sign the acknowledgement form stating they agreed to abide by them.  

It was moved by Councilor Wilson and seconded by Councilor Scroggin to adopt the Council 
Rules of Procedure.  

It was moved by Councilor Jones and seconded by Councilor McDonald to amend the original 
motion to strike the words “I agree to comply with the provisions of the City Council Rules of 
Procedure.” from the acknowledgement form.  The motion to amend carried by a majority with 
Councilor Jim Fairchild, Councilor Beth Jones, Councilor Mark McDonald, Councilor Kevin 
Marshall, and Councilor Ken Woods voting YES and Council President Wes Scroggin, Councilor 
Murray Stewart, and Councilor LaVonne Wilson voting NO.

The amended motion to adopt the Council Rules of Procedure with the last line of the 
acknowledgement form removed carried unanimously.    

OTHER

Mr. Wyatt reported staff had begun preparations for the fourth annual Christmas Dinner in Dallas, 
which would be held on December 22, from 4:30 to 6:30 p.m. at LaCreole Middle School.  He 
explained staff held this annual event to provide a holiday meal to those less fortunate.

Mr. Wyatt explained the Public Works and Public Safety Committee meetings were scheduled for 
December 26, but City Hall was closed that day for the holiday.  He advised those meetings 
would be canceled.

RESOLUTIONS

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE

Ordinance No. 1743: An Ordinance amending provisions of the Dallas City Code Section 2.005, 
relating to Council meetings.

Mayor Dalton declared Ordinance No. 1743 to have passed its first reading.

SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE

Ordinance No. 1742: An Ordinance declaring 66 acres, more or less, of territory located in the 
Comprehensive Plan-designated Barberry Node adjacent to and south of East Ellendale Avenue in 
the Northeast quadrant of the City of Dallas annexed to the City of Dallas and withdrawn from 
Southwestern Polk County Rural Fire Protection District.



City Council Meeting
December 5, 2011
Page 4 

Councilor McDonald stated he had thought long and hard about the annexation, noting he was a 
firm property rights advocate.  He indicated if Mr. Fowler wished to bring his property into the 
City and the City could support the increased infrastructure, nothing should be done to prevent 
him from doing so.  He noted that no one he had spoken to was against having the property 
annexed, but what came to light was that there was a certain bit of misrepresentation going on that 
may not have been intentional.  He indicated the lack of transparency in the process alarmed some 
people.  Councilor McDonald advised he was concerned that instead of a list of names of those 
who owned the property, those held by limited liability corporations did not list the agents.  He 
indicated that one fact is a lack of transparency that should have been addressed during the 
application process.  He commented there was a procedural process in the annexation that should 
be addressed in the future.  Councilor McDonald also expressed his concern that some of the 
testimony at the public hearing was not pertinent to the development.  Mr. Wyatt explained an 
annexation was a land use process and the application met all legal requirements.  Councilor 
McDonald asked how the legal requirements could be changed.  Mr. Shetterly explained a limited 
liability corporation (LLC) was a business entity expressly authorized by the state to own 
property.  He stated an LLC may have members, but while the members owned the LLC, the LLC 
owned the property, noting one could not inquire into an LLC.  Mr. Wyatt noted that when people 
testify at a public hearing, they were allowed to say whatever they wanted and the Council had to 
allow them to do that.  He stated there were rumors that staff had asked the Windermere 
representatives to testify, which was not true.

Councilor McDonald acknowledged the Council and staff must comply with State law.  He noted 
when a property is owned by Fife Group, for instance, a lot of people felt there were things going 
on they didn’t understand and the City wasn’t shedding enough light on it, which was a concern 
of his.  He expressed his concern that the Council’s reputation not be tarnished and that they live 
up to the highest standards.  He indicated he wasn’t saying there was anything improper done, just 
a lot of concerns raised by his constituents, something he takes very seriously.  

Mayor Dalton declared Ordinance No. 1742 to have passed its second reading.  A roll call vote 
was taken and Mayor Dalton declared Ordinance No. 1742 to have PASSED BY A 
UNANIMOUS VOTE with Council President Wes Scroggin, Councilor Jim Fairchild, Councilor 
Beth Jones, Councilor Mark McDonald, Councilor Kevin Marshall, Councilor Murray Stewart, 
Councilor LaVonne Wilson, and Councilor Ken Woods, Jr. voting YES.

OTHER BUSINESS

Mr. Wyatt explained Councilor Lawson’s term was up on the Park Board and asked anyone who 
was interested in serving on that Board to let him know.

Mayor Dalton stated Eldon Bevens had served on the Council for many years and was not in good 
health.  He said his hopes and prayers were with Mr. Bevens.

Mayor Dalton reported that one of his duties was to appoint committees each year and expressed 
his intent to continue with the same committees next year to provide stability and expertise.  He 
noted he would also keep the seating the same for the following year unless someone talked to 
him about it.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:54 p.m.

Read and approved this _______ day of _________________________ 2011.

_______________________________________
                                     Mayor

ATTEST:

_________________________________________
City Manager


